
1 
 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 
OCTOBER 8, 2019 

7:00PM 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission for October 8, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM. 

CALL OF ROLL: 
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:  
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Bryan Murdock, Katie West and Judy Coughlin  
ABSENT: None  
Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator and Council Liaison Dennis Schilling 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

OPEN FORUM:  
Chuck Rheault, 25432 West Comfort Drive, asked the Commission to be aware that whatever 
decision is made tonight regarding the development on West Comfort Drive will set precedent for 
all the other land around it.  He asked the Commission to be cautious in their decision-making 
process. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota 

Planning Commission for September 24, 2019 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ERICSON, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR MEETING” OF THE 
WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 AS 
SUBMITTED. 
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None  
Absent:   None 

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 

NEW BUSINESS:  NONE 

OLD BUSINESS: 
2. Variance – Lot Width and Road Frontage V-19-001 “Shore View Two” 

Applicant:      Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders 
       West Comfort Drive 
Property ID Numbers:    21.10501.00 and 21.10505.00 

 
Chair Lobermeier gave an overview of the process for discussion regarding this item thus far and 
noted that the Public Hearing was continued from the September 10, 2019 meeting to tonight.   

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY COMMISSION WEST, TO RE-
OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE VARIANCE REQUEST FOR LOT WIDTH AND 



2 
 

ROAD FRONTAGE FOR V-19-001 “SHORE VIEW TWO”, GREG RADEFELDT, ROCK 
BUILDERS, WEST COMFORT DRIVE, PROPERTY ID NUMBERS: 21.10501.00 AND 
21.10505.00.   
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None  
Absent:   None 

Greg Radefeldt, gave an overview of the revised plans that have been submitted to the City and 
noted that they tried to incorporate many of the comments from the Commission.  He stated that 
a majority of the lots are now at least 150 feet wide.  
Chair Lobermeier stated that he is not seeing a significant change on some of the lot widths and 
noted that he still sees lots that are 128 feet wide along the north property line.   
Zoning Administrator Weck explained that the dimensions show road frontage and lot width.  He 
stated that the lot width is measured between the two side lot lines at the front setback line.   
Chair Lobermeier reiterated that there are still 6 lots and it doesn’t look the lot widths have 
changed too much.  He noted that the ordinance calls for lots that are 200 feet wide.   
Mr. Radefeldt stated that his understanding of the feedback from the Commission was that the 
City wanted him to keep as many lots as possible at 150 feet and that a bit less for just a few lots 
would be palatable.   
Commissioner Coughlin stated that it appears as though the small drawings differ from the large 
drawings that they have seen for the area around Lot 10.  She noted that she has concerns about 
the locations for the two septic systems because one is on the other side of the wetlands and 
asked if that would be feasible.   
Mr. Radefeldt stated that directional boring has gotten very inexpensive and there is also new 
technology for the pumps themselves and doesn’t think it will be a problem.  
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that there is this same situation in Hawk Meadows, so it has 
been done before in the City.   
Commissioner Coughlin asked about the sites on the smaller drawings where the curvature would 
not allow for a septic site.   
Zoning Administrator Weck referenced Chapter 78 of the Septic Code and explained the reasons 
that septic systems will not be allowed in the 4 locations noted on the drawings near Lots 2 and 
3 in block 2.  He stated that he believes one of the lots has other options, but is concerned that 
the remaining 3 will not.  He stated that in order to alleviate this issue, the development may need 
to lose a lot.  
Commissioner Coughlin asked if Mr. Radefeldt had gotten rid of the curb and gutter. 
Mr. Radefeldt explained that is still included in the plan.   
Commissioner Murdock asked about protecting the septic mound areas and what appears to be 
setback lines on the drawings. 
Zoning Administrator Weck explained that those were building setback lines and septic areas can 
cross those lines and be within 10 feet of a property.   
Commissioner Murdock expressed concern about protecting the soils from being compacted 
during the construction process. 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that if the plat is approved the next step will be fencing for 
erosion control and fencing off all the septic areas.  He explained that the fences would stay up 
during the entirety of the construction process. 



3 
 

Chair Lobermeier asked the Commission if they had any questions concerning the layout relative 
to the ordinance and the variance requests for lot width.  He stated that there are still some lots 
that are narrower than the 150 feet discussed at the last meeting.  He stated that overall, the lots 
are about 1.5 acres which makes them a bit larger than those in the Bridgewater development.  
He noted that he believes that many of the widths in the Bridgewater development were 165 feet 
wide, so he believes the area of these lots are similar to that subdivision.   
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that Block 2 where the skinnier lots are located, if a lot is lost, 
the developer will be able to distribute that lot area amongst the remaining lots. 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he would prefer this option because he thinks it is pushing it to get 
6 lots in this area.  He explained that he appreciates the feedback from residents that this sets a 
precedent and noted that the Commission also needs to take a look at ordinances and the 
Comprehensive Plan and make sure that   what the City is trying to accomplish with land uses 
and make sure the ordinances are in sync with certain types of development in the City.    

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LOBERMEIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
MURDOCK, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE VARIANCE REQUEST FOR LOT 
WIDTH AND ROAD FRONTAGE FOR V-19-001 “SHORE VIEW TWO”, GREG 
RADEFELDT, ROCK BUILDERS, WEST COMFORT DRIVE, PROPERTY ID NUMBERS: 
21.10501.00 AND 21.10505.00, SUBJECT TO THE NUMBER OF LOTS OF BLOCK 2 BE 
REDUCED FROM 6 LOTS TO  5 LOTS.  
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None  
Absent:   None 

3. Preliminary Plat     D-19-004 “Shore View Two” 
Applicant:      Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders 
       West Comfort Drive 
Property ID Numbers:    21.10501.00 and 21.10505.00 
 

The Commission discussed the plat layout and the potential drainage issues in the area.   
Chair Lobermeier stated that it appears that not a lot of the water from this subdivision drains in 
this location and stated that he would find it interesting to see the calculations. 
Mr. Radefeldt explained that there are a series of catch basins in place with the storm sewer 
system and noted that it is an expensive operation for them.  He explained the details of how the 
system is designed to work and noted that all the water will be treated. 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he appreciated the details of how the system will work and noted 
that because of the proximity of Comfort Lake he feels treatment of this water is necessary and 
addressed concerns of the nearby residents.  
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she feels it is important that this subdivision doesn’t drain 
north, towards Bridgewater.     
Mr. Radefeldt explained that there will be a berm and a pond, so he feels it will reduce water to 
that area.  He stated that they have had conversations with the resident who lives just to the north 
of the pond.    
Chair Lobermeier stated that he had neglected to have a conversation during the September 10, 
2019 Planning Commission meeting regarding the e-mail the City received about the farm dump 
on this property.   
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he feels this is something that should be looked at and 
cleaned up.   



4 
 

Chair Lobermeier stated that the plat shows the proposed 10-foot trail but he is unclear where it 
will actually be placed. 
Mr. Radefeldt stated that the trail may be able to shifted to the west side. 
Chair Lobermeier stated that there has also been talk about a 40-foot trail along West Comfort 
Drive. 
Mr. Radefeldt explained that this is not intended to be a driving area and will be for walking and 
hiking. 
Chair Lobermeier asked that the plat show the actual locations for the proposed trail. 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if the trail on the west side would go down the property line in 
order to access the park.   
Mr. Radefeldt stated that was correct.  

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER WEST, TO 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAT REQUEST FOR LOT WIDTH 
AND ROAD FRONTAGE FOR D-19-004 “SHORE VIEW TWO”, GREG RADEFELDT, 
ROCK BUILDERS, WEST COMFORT DRIVE, PROPERTY ID NUMBERS: 21.10501.00 
AND 21.10505.00, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:   
1. TWO PERC TESTS AND A MINIMUM OF FOUR SOIL BORINGS BE PROVIDED FOR 

A MINIMUM OF 20% OF THE LOTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT;  
2. THAT THE NUMBER OF LOTS IN BLOCK 2 BE REDUCED FROM 6 LOTS TO 5 LOTS;  
3. THAT THE SEPTIC SYSTEM AREA IN LOT 5, BLOCK 3 BE MODIFIED SO THAT IT IS 

NOT WITHIN A SWALE OR A DRAW;  
4. THAT THE FARM DUMP LOCATED NEAR THE NORTH END OF LOTS 2 AND 3 OF 

BLOCK 1 BE INVESTIGATED AND CLEANED UP;  
5. THAT THE LOCATION OF THE PARK TRAIL ON LOT 10, BLOCK 3 BE CONFIRMED;  
6. THAT AFTER THE CITY ENGINEER HAS APPROVED THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS, NEW CONSTRUCTION PLANS THAT REFLECT THE 
APPROVED REVISIONS ARE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY; 

7. THAT ALL REQUIRED LOCAL, STATE, AND/OR FEDERAL PERMITTING MUST BE 
OBTAINED AND PROOF OF SUCH PERMITS SUBMITTED PRIOR TO THE PRE-
CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE WITH STAFF;  

8. IF BY-LAWS, PROPERTY OWNER’S ASSOCIATION ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION, AND/OR PROTECTIVE COVENANTS ARE TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE LOTS, SAID INSTRUMENTS MUST FIRST BE APPROVED BY THE CITY 
ATTORNEY;  

9. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF WHICH MUST BE 
APPROVED BY THE CITY ATTORNEY, BETWEEN THE PROPERTY OWNER, THE 
DEVELOPER, AND THE CITY, MUST BE EXECUTED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION 
BEGINNING ON THE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT;  

10. A SURETY IN THE FORM OF A CASH DEPOSIT OR LETTER OR CREDIT 
GUARANTEEING TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE APPROVED STREET, UTILITY, GRADING, AND DRAINAGE PLANS.  THE 
SURETY MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL THE SITE WORK IS COMPLETE AND 
APPROVED BY THE CITY.  THE CITY ENGINEER MUST APPROVE THE SURETY 
AMOUNT AND THE CITY ATTORNEY MUST APPROVE THE TERMS IF A LETTER OF 
CREDIT IS USED.  



5 
 

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None  
Absent:   None 

4. Comprehensive Plan Update – Open House Discussion 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the Commission should talk a bit about the format and schedule for 
the upcoming Open House meeting.  He stated that dates had been discussed in mid to late 
November before the holidays and to avoid opening of deer hunting season.  
Zoning Administrator Weck noted that a tentative date of Wednesday, November 6, 2019 has 
been chosen.  He stated that generally the Council has held their Open House type meetings on 
Wednesdays. 
The Commission discussed other options during the month of November that would be later in 
the month. 
Chair Lobermeier suggested November 20, 2019 because it is a week before Thanksgiving and 
would also give staff and the Commission time to prepare for the meeting.  He noted that many 
times these types of meetings will start around 5:30 in order for people to be able to stop in on 
their way home from work. 
Council Liaison Schilling stated that there is nothing on the Council calendar for November 20, 
2019, so that date should work.   
Chair Lobermeier stated that he suggests a general start time around 5:30 p.m.  He stated that 
the details can be sorted out once a date and time is chosen. 
Commissioner Coughlin asked where the Open House will be held. 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he thinks that the City Hall facility will suffice.   
Chair Lobermeier stated that he would like to make sure part of the discussion is to discuss ways 
to align the Zoning and the Comprehensive Plan maps.   

COMMUNICATIONS:  NONE 

UPDATES:   
Zoning Administrator Weck noted that there is a site plan review for a racking system for Hallberg 
Marine slated for the next meeting.  He stated that the Commission will also discuss the survey 
results and more details on the format and which maps should be brought to the Open House.     
Commissioner Murdock stated that he would like it if the Commission could have access to the 
survey results prior to the meeting in order to review it in greater detail.   
Commissioner West stated that she has not seen much posted on Facebook regarding the survey 
and suggested that more be done in order to remind people to fill it out.   

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO ADJOURN THE OCTOBER 8, 2019 “REGULAR 
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 7:47 PM. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None  
Absent:   None 


	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

